

**#RightForRugby** 

#### LICENSING AND SAFETY COMMITTEE – 16 JULY 2024

A meeting of the Licensing and Safety Committee will be held at 6pm on Tuesday 16 July 2024 in the Council Chamber at the Town Hall, Rugby.

Members of the public may view the meeting via the livestream from the Council's website.

Mannie Ketley Chief Executive

#### AGENDA

#### PART 1 – PUBLIC BUSINESS

1. Minutes.

To confirm the minutes of the meetings held on 27 February 2024 and 5 June 2024.

2. Apologies.

To receive apologies for absence from the meeting.

- 3. Declarations of Interest.
  - To receive declarations of -
  - (a) non-pecuniary interests as defined by the Council's Code of Conduct for Councillors;
  - (b) pecuniary interests as defined by the Council's Code of Conduct for Councillors; and
  - (c) notice under Section 106 Local Government Finance Act 1992 nonpayment of Community Charge or Council Tax.

Note: Members are reminded that they should declare the existence and nature of their non-pecuniary interests at the commencement of the meeting (or as soon as the interest becomes apparent). If that interest is a prejudicial interest the Member must withdraw from the room unless one of the exceptions applies. Membership of Warwickshire County Council or any Parish Council is classed as a non-pecuniary interest under the Code of Conduct. A Member does not need to declare this interest unless the Member chooses to speak on a matter relating to their membership. If the Member does not wish to speak on the matter, the Member may still vote on the matter without making a declaration.

4. Statutory Review of Gambling Policy Statement of Principles.

#### PART 2 – EXEMPT INFORMATION

There is no business involving exempt information to be transacted.

**Membership of the Committee:** Councillors Garcia (Chair), Barnett, Dumbleton, Henderson, D Keeling, J Keeling, Lewis, O'Rourke, Parker, Sayani, Srivastava and Trimble

If you have any general queries with regard to this agenda please contact Linn Ashmore, Democratic Services Officer (01788 533522 or e-mail <u>Linn.Ashmore@rugby.gov.uk</u>). Any specific queries concerning reports should be directed to the listed contact officer.

## AGENDA MANAGEMENT SHEET

Report Title:	Statutory Review of Gambling Policy Statement of Principles
Name of Committee:	Licensing and Safety Committee
Date of Meeting:	16 July 2024
Report Director:	Chief Officer – Regulation and Safety
Portfolio:	Regulation and Safety
Ward Relevance:	All
Prior Consultation:	A full public consultation will be carried out should the draft gambling policy statement of principles be approved.
Contact Officer:	Kim Burford, Enforcement Support Officer Kim.Burford@rugby.gov.uk
Public or Private:	Public
Report Subject to Call-In:	
Report En-Bloc:	
Forward Plan:	
Corporate Priorities: (C) Climate (E) Economy (HC) Health and Communities (O) Organisation	<ul> <li>This report relates to the following priority(ies):</li> <li>Rugby is an environmentally sustainable place, where we work together to reduce and mitigate the effects of climate change. (C)</li> <li>Rugby has a diverse and resilient economy that benefits and enables opportunities for all residents. (E)</li> <li>Residents live healthy, independent lives, with the most vulnerable protected. (HC)</li> <li>Rugby Borough Council is a responsible, effective and efficient organisation. (O)</li> <li>Corporate Strategy 2021-2024</li> <li>This report does not specifically relate to any Council priorities but</li> </ul>
Summary:	The Gambling Act 2005 places a duty on the Council to publish a Gambling Policy - Statement of Principles on which licensing decisions will be

	based. The policy must be reviewed every 3 years. The Council's existing policy was adopted with effect from 31 January 2022, the committee can be reviewed <u>here</u> . The Policy is now due for review and must be re-published by 31 January 2025. The policy has been reviewed and no changes have been made therefore it is recommended that consultation commences with those listed at 2.2 of the report.
Financial Implications:	There are no financial implications arising from this report.
Risk Management Implications:	There are no risk management implications arising from this report.
Environmental Implications:	There are no environmental implications arising from this report. A Climate Change and Environmental Impact Assessment has been completed and can be seen at Appendix D.
Legal Implications:	There are no legal implications arising from this report. Review is being conducted in line with the statutory requirements as set out within the Gambling Act 2005.
Equality and Diversity:	Please refer to the Equality Impact Assessment attached to this report at appendix C.
Options:	<ol> <li>Approve the Gambling Policy Statement of Principles for consultation.</li> <li>Do not approve the Gambling Policy Statement of Principles for consultation.</li> </ol>
Recommendation:	(1) The Draft Gambling Policy Statement of Principles be approved for consultation in line with statutory requirements; and
	(2) if, in the opinion of the Chief Officer for Regulation and Safety, there are no valid/material objections that require further consideration by the Licensing & Safety Committee then the Chief Officer for Regulation and Safety can recommend the adoption of the attached Gambling Policy Statement of Principles to Council.
Reasons for Recommendation:	The review and approval of the Gambling Policy Statement of Principles is a statutory requirement, and it must be consulted on, approved, and published by 31 January 2025.

# Licensing and Safety Committee - 16 July 2024

# **Statutory Review of Gambling Policy Statement of Principles**

## Public Report of the Chief Officer – Regulation and Safety

#### Recommendation

(1) The Draft Gambling Policy Statement of Principles be approved for consultation in line with statutory requirements; and

(2) if, in the opinion of the Chief Officer for Regulation and Safety, there are no valid/material objections that require further consideration by the Licensing & Safety Committee then the Chief Officer for Regulation and Safety can recommend the adoption of the attached Gambling Policy Statement of Principles to Council.

#### 1. Executive Summary

- 1.1. Section 349 of the Gambling Act 2005 (the Act) requires the Council to review its Gambling Policy Statement of Principles (the Policy) every 3 years. The current Policy has effect until 30 January 2025 and so the new Policy must be in place by this date.
- 1.2. If approved for consultation, the Gambling Policy Statement of Principles will undergo a 12-week consultation from 19 July 2024 until 11 October 2024. Following consultation if, in the opinion of the Chief Officer of Regulation and Safety, there are no valid/material objections that require further consideration by the Licensing & Safety Committee then the Chief Officer of Regulation and Safety can recommend the adoption of the attached Gambling Policy Statement of Principles to Council.
- 1.3. Responsibility for adoption of a new policy document lies with full Council.
- 1.4. The principles of the Gambling Policy remain the same and the Policy document is centred around the 3 licensing objectives specified in the Act namely;
- Preventing gambling from being a source of crime or disorder, being associated with crime or disorder or being used to support crime;
- Ensuring that gambling is conducted in a fair and open way, and;
- Protecting children and other vulnerable persons from being harmed or exploited by gambling.

- 1.5. A 'vulnerable person' is defined by the Act as including people who gamble more than they want to, people who are gambling beyond their means, and people who may not be able to make informed or balanced decisions about gambling due to a mental impairment, alcohol or drugs.
- 1.6. The Government's Gambling Act Review remains ongoing however should it bring changes to the Act, the Gambling Policy Statement of Principles will be reviewed as necessary.

#### 2. Report

- 2.1 A copy of the draft Policy is attached at Appendix A. The Policy complies with the Gambling Commission's guidance and regulations and was prepared in conjunction with the other Warwickshire District Councils and Coventry City Council to aim for greater consistency.
- 2.2 The consultation exercise, should it be approved at this meeting, will run from 19 July 2024 to 11 October 2024. The draft Policy will be available on the Council's website, and notification of the consultation will be sent to a wide range of relevant organisations including the following:

#### **Responsible Authorities**

- The Police
- Fire Service
- Environmental Health
- Planning
- Children's Services
- HMRC
- Gambling Commission

#### Other interested parties

- Councillors
- Parish Councils
- Trade organisations
- Licensed premises in the area
- Organisations such as Gamcare and Gamblers Anonymous UK
- Rugby Disability Forum
- 2.3 All comments will be reviewed by the Licensing & Parking Team in conjunction with the Chief Officer of Regulation and Safety and reflected in the draft policy if appropriate. All relevant comments will be addressed within the Report to Council.
- 2.4 At the present time, the Policy document should be approved to take effect from 30 January 2025 to enable sufficient time for the consultation and for the Policy to be effective by the expiry date of the existing policy which is 30 January 2025.
- 2.5 The Gambling Commission recently consulted on a number of aspects of the Licence Conditions and Codes of Practice (LCCP). There are scheduled changes due to come into effect between 30 August 2024 and the latest

being 30 November 2024. In summary the changes which will impact the Council's Gambling Policy Statement of Principles are as below:

- 2.5.1 Age Verification. New rules will come into force meaning that all landbased licensees must carry out age verification testing, and that premises should operate a challenge 25 policy rather than a challenge 21. The changes will be implemented to the LCCP on 30 August 2024.
- 2.5.2 Personal Management Licences. The Commission have extended and clarified the management roles that the Commission expect to hold a personal management licence, the changes will come into force on 30 November 2024.
- 2.6. Once the above changes have been published by the Gambling Commission, the necessary changes will be made to the Policy document and a further 12-week consultation will be undertaken. At the present time Officers are looking to consult on the policy document with no changes to allow sufficient time for the Policy to be published before the expiry of the current Policy document. To consult now allows sufficient time for a 12-week consultation to be completed and policy in effect by the expiry date of the existing policy which is 30 January 2025. The Licensing Authority must publish a Statement of Principles in pursuance of its powers and duties under section 349 of the Gambling Act 2005 (referred to in this Statement as "the Act") and sets out the Authority's approach in dealing with its responsibilities under the Act.

#### 3 Conclusion

3.1 This review is a statutory requirement, and the Committee is asked to approve the Gambling Policy for consultation.

#### 4. Table of Appendices

Appendix	Description
Α	Draft Gambling Statement of Principles Policy 2025 - 2028
В	Consultation Letter to be sent
С	Equality Impact Assessment
D	Climate Change and Environmental Impact Assessment

Name of Meeting: Licensing and Safety Committee

Date of Meeting: 16 July 2024

Subject Matter: Review of Gambling Policy Statement of Principles

**Originating Department:** Regulation and Safety

#### DO ANY BACKGROUND PAPERS APPLY

|--|

#### LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS

Doc No	Title of Document and Hyperlink

The background papers relating to reports on planning applications and which are open to public inspection under Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972, consist of the planning applications, referred to in the reports, and all written responses to consultations made by the Local Planning Authority, in connection with those applications.

Exempt information is contained in the following documents:

Doc No	Relevant Paragraph of Schedule 12A

Appendix A



Gambling Act 2005

# **Gambling Policy**

# Statement of Principles

# 2025/2028

Approved on 11 December 2024

Policy effective from 31 January 2025 to 30 January 2028

#### Important Note

In producing this Statement of Gambling Policy the Authority is aware that the Government may amend the Gambling Act 2005, subordinate legislation and statutory guidance.

Readers of this document advised to check on the Gambling Commission/Gov.uk websites to ensure they have the latest information.

# Gambling Policy Contents

		Page
1	Introduction	1
2	The Gambling Act 2005	1
3	Authorised Activities	2
4	General Statement of Principles	3
	The licensing objectives:	
5	Preventing gambling from being a source of crime and disorder etc.	4
6	Ensure Gambling is conducted in a fair and open way	5
7	Protecting children and other vulnerable persons from being harmed or exploited by gambling	6
8	Premises Licences	7
9	Location	8
10	Primary Activity	9
11	Responsible Authorities	9
12	Interested Parties	10
13	Representations	11
14	Conditions of Licence	12
15	Casinos	12
16	Betting Premises	12
17	Bingo	13
18	Tracks	14
19	Temporary Use Notices	14
20	Occasional Use Notices	15
21	Gaming Machines	15
22	Unlicensed Family Entertainment Centre Gaming Machine Permits	15
23	(Alcohol) Licensed Premises Gaming Machine Permits	16
24	Prize Gaming Permits	17
25	Club Gaming and Club Machine Permits	18
26	Lotteries	19
27	Exchange of Information	19
28	Enforcement	19
29	The Licensing Process	20
30	Reviews	22
	Annex 1 - gaming machine definition tables (categories and volume of machines allowed in each type of premise)	

#### GAMBLING ACT 2005

#### GAMBLING POLICY STATEMENT OF PRINCIPLES

#### 1. Introduction

- 1.1 Rugby Borough Council, as the Licensing Authority (referred to in this Statement as "the Authority"), makes this Statement of Principles in pursuance of its powers and duties under section 349 of the Gambling Act 2005 (referred to in this Statement as "the Act") and sets out the Authority's approach in dealing with its responsibilities under the Act.
- 1.2 The Borough of Rugby covers an area of 138 square miles located in central England, within the County of Warwickshire. The Borough is on the eastern edge of the West Midlands Region, bordering directly on to the counties of Northamptonshire and Leicestershire, both of which are in the East Midlands Region. The Borough has 41 parishes, and the largest centre of population is the attractive town of Rugby with two thirds of the Borough's 108,935 (2019) residents living in the town and the remainder residing in the rural area. The villages in the Borough range in size from 20 to 3,000 people.
- 1.3 List of Consultees:

The Authority has consulted the following on the content of this Statement of Principles:

- Responsible Authorities
- Holders of existing licences, permits and registrations
- Councillors and Parish Councils
- Representatives of businesses
- Representatives of persons carrying on gambling businesses in Rugby
- Local bodies representing consumers and tourism
- Local bodies representing vulnerable persons
- Departments within the Council with an interest in the licensing of gambling

The draft document was also made available on the Authority's website.

1.4 In preparing this Statement, the Authority has had regard to the provisions of the Act, the Guidance issued by the Gambling Commission, Regulations made by the Secretary of State and responses to its consultations.

#### 2. Gambling Act 2005

- 2.1 The Act specifies licensing objectives which are central to the regulatory regime, these are:
  - preventing gambling from being a source of crime and disorder, being associated with crime or disorder, or being used to support crime;
  - ensuring that gambling is conducted in a fair and open way; and

- protecting children and other vulnerable persons from being harmed or exploited by gambling.
- 2.2 In carrying out the licensing function under the Act, the Authority will aim to permit the use of premises for gambling as long as it is considered to be:
  - in accordance with any relevant Codes of Practice issued by the Gambling Commission;
  - in accordance with any relevant Guidance issued by the Gambling Commission;
  - in accordance with this Statement of Principles; and
  - reasonably consistent with the licensing objectives.
- 2.3 The Act provides for 3 categories of licence:
  - operating licences;
  - personal licences; and
  - premises licences.
- 2.4 The Authority will be responsible for issuing premises licences. The Gambling Commission will be responsible for issuing operating and personal licences.
- 2.5 This Statement will come into force on 31 January 2025 and will have effect until 30 January 2028 being kept under review and revised or amended as required following consultation.

#### 3. Authorised Activities

- 3.1 'Gambling' is defined in the Act as either gaming, betting, or taking part in a lottery. Definitions of terms are as follows:
  - gaming means playing a game of chance for a prize;
  - betting means making or accepting a bet on the outcome of a race, competition, or any other event, the likelihood of anything occurring or not occurring, or whether anything is true or not;
  - a lottery is where persons are required to pay in order to take part in an arrangement, during the course of which one or more prizes are allocated by a process which relies wholly on chance.
- 3.2 The main functions of the Authority are to:
  - licence premises for gambling activities;
  - grant permits for gambling and gaming machines in clubs;
  - regulate gaming and gaming machines in alcohol licensed premises;
  - grant permits to family entertainment centres for the use of certain lower stake gaming machines;
  - grant permits for prize gaming;
  - consider notices given for the temporary use of premises for gaming;
  - receive occasional use notices for betting at tracks; and
  - register small societies lotteries.

3.3 Spread betting is regulated by the Financial Services Authority. Remote Gambling is dealt with by the Gambling Commission. The National Lottery is regulated by Gambling Commission.

#### 4. General Statement of Principles

- 4.1 The Authority recognises the wide variety of premises which will require a licence or a permit. These include casinos, betting shops, bingo halls, pubs, clubs, amusement arcades and race tracks.
- 4.2 In carrying out its licensing functions the Authority will have regard to Guidance issued by the Gambling Commission.
- 4.3 The Authority will not seek to use the Act to resolve matters more readily dealt with under other legislation. This Statement of Principles will avoid duplication with other regulatory regimes wherever possible. In considering applications, and taking enforcement action, under the Gambling Act the Authority will have regard to the provisions of the Human Rights Act.
- 4.4 To ensure the licensing objectives are met the Authority will establish a close working relationship with the police, the Gambling Commission and other responsible authorities.
- 4.5 Premises licences granted must be reasonably consistent with the licensing objectives. With regard to these objectives, this Authority has considered the Gambling Commission's Guidance to local authorities. However, the overriding principle is that each application and the circumstances prevailing at each premises will be considered on their own individual merits. Other considerations such as moral or ethical objections to gambling are not valid reasons to reject applications for premises licences as they do not relate to the licensing objectives.
- 4.6 In its Guidance to Local Authorities the Gambling Commission suggests that Licensing Authorities should adopt a 'Local Area Profile'. A Local Area Profile is created by gathering information about a locality and highlighting any particular areas of concern within the locality.
- 4.7 Where evidence is submitted to the Licensing Authority identifying any areas of concern the Licensing Authority will produce a Local Area Profile separate to this statement. Once adopted, the Local Area Profile is intended to assist the Licensing Authority and Operators in identifying specific risks within the district.

# 5. Preventing gambling from being a source of crime and disorder; being associated with crime and disorder or being used to support crime

5.1 The Gambling Commission will play a leading role in preventing gambling from being a source of crime and will maintain rigorous licensing procedures that aim to prevent criminals from providing facilities for gambling or being associated with providing such facilities. The Council has a specific duty under Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 to exercise its functions with regard to the likely effect of doing so on crime and disorder, and also to do all that it reasonably can to prevent crime and disorder in the area.

- 5.2 When applying to this Authority for a premises licence, the applicant will have to hold an operating licence from the Commission before a licence can be issued, so the Authority will not therefore be concerned with the suitability of the applicant. Where concerns about a person's suitability arise, the Authority will bring those concerns to the attention of the Commission. The Authority will have to be satisfied that the premises will not adversely affect the licensing objective and is compliant with the Commission's Guidance and Codes of Practice, and this Gambling Policy.
- 5.3 The Authority has had regard to the small number of existing premises licences and the small number of applications likely to be received. With this in mind it has not produced a local area profile at the time of publication of this Policy (should this change, then the Policy will be amended accordingly, and the local area profile made available to applicants). Applicants will however be expected to have a good understanding of the local area in which they either operate or intend to operate. The applicant will have to provide evidence that they meet the criteria set out in the Policy and demonstrate that in operating the premises they will promote this objective. Operators need to be aware of how the operation of their premises may impact on this objective. The Authority will expect applicants to provide details of their crime prevention measures and any risk assessments that they have carried out.
- 5.4 To prevent gambling from being a source of crime or disorder, being associated with crime or disorder, or being used to support crime, the Authority will apply the following criteria and take into account the following considerations, where relevant, in determining applications and reviews.

#### Criteria:

Whether the premises make or will make a contribution to the levels of crime and disorder and whether the applicant has demonstrated that he has, or intends to, implement sufficient controls to prevent the premises being a source of, and/or associated with crime or disorder, or being used to support crime, if the application is granted.

#### **Considerations:**

- Where an area is known for high levels of crime the Authority will consider carefully whether gambling premises are suitable to be located there, and whether additional conditions may be necessary, such as the provision of CCTV, minimum levels of staffing and licensed door supervisors.
- Whether there is a history of crime or disorder associated with the premises or its use by those involved in crime to associate or dispose of the proceeds of crime.
- Whether the layout, lighting and fitting out of the premises have been designed so as to minimise conflict and opportunities for crime and disorder.

- Whether sufficient management measures are proposed or are in place to prevent the premises being a source of, or associated with crime or disorder, or used to support crime either as a place of association or to avoid being apprehended.
- The Authority will also consider the location of the premises in the context of this licensing objective. If an application is received in relation to premises that are in an area noted for particular problems with organised crime or a premises that have previously been a focus for antisocial behaviour, the Authority will expect applicants to demonstrate that they have sufficient measures in place to prevent or deter people involved from using their premises and will also consider conditions being put on the licence to promote this licensing objective.
- Whilst issues of nuisance are not included specifically in the gambling objectives and cannot be addressed via the Gambling Act, the Authority may consider, when making decisions on the applications for premises licences, that extreme instances of public nuisance and/or persistent public nuisance may constitute disorder and/or crime for the purposes of this objective.

#### 6. Ensure Gambling is conducted in a fair and open way

6.1 Generally the Commission would not expect Licensing Authorities to become concerned with ensuring that gambling is conducted in a fair and open way as this will be a matter for either:

(a) the management of the gambling business, and therefore subject to the operating licence; or

(b) will be in relation to the suitability and actions of an individual and therefore subject to the personal licence.

6.2 In relation to the licensing of tracks the Authority's role will be different from other premises in that track operators will not necessarily have an operating licence. In those circumstances the premises licence may need to contain conditions to ensure that the environment in which betting takes place is suitable.

#### Criteria:

Whether the premises will operate measures that will ensure that the gambling activity is conducted in a fair and open way.

#### **Considerations:**

- Whether the layout, lighting and fitting out of the premises have been designed so as to ensure gambling is conducted in a fair and open way.
- Whether sufficient management measures are proposed or are in place to ensure that gambling is conducted in a fair and open way.

- Whether the management and operation of the premises is open and transparent.
- Whether the operators of the premises have been or will be fully cooperative with enforcement agencies.
- Whether the Commission's Codes of Practice have been complied with.

# 7. Protecting children and other vulnerable persons from being harmed or exploited by gambling

- 7.1 The Gambling Commission's Guidance states that one of the aims of this objective means preventing children from taking part in gambling (as well as restricting advertising so that gambling products are not aimed at or are, particularly attractive to children).
- 7.2 The Act and Gambling Commission Guidance do not define the term "vulnerable". For regulatory purposes the Commission states that it assumes "vulnerable" persons" includes:
  - people who gamble more than they want to;
  - people who are gambling beyond their means; and
  - people who may not be able to make informed or balanced decisions about gambling due to a mental impairment, alcohol or drugs.

This is the definition the Authority will use in its consideration of applications.

- 7.3 This Authority will pay particular attention to any Codes of Practice, which the Gambling Commission issues in relation to specific premises. It will consider this licensing objective on a case-by-case basis, and where necessary add conditions to promote this objective.
- 7.4 To protect children and other vulnerable persons from being harmed or exploited by gambling, the Authority will apply the following criteria and take into account the following considerations, where relevant, in determining applications and reviews.

#### Criteria:

Whether there are appropriate measures in place to protect children and other vulnerable persons from being harmed or exploited by gambling.

#### **Considerations:**

- Whether the operator has a specific training programme for staff to ensure that they are able to identify children and vulnerable people and take appropriate action to promote this objective to exclude them from the premises or parts of the premises.
- If the premises is an adult only environment, whether the operator has taken effective measures to implement an appropriate proof of age

scheme to ensure that no one under the age of 18 is admitted to the premises or restricted areas.

- Whether there is provision for self-barring schemes and provision of information leaflets/helpline numbers for organisations such as GamCare.
- Whether the layout, lighting and fitting out of the premises have been designed so as to not attract children and other vulnerable persons who might be harmed or exploited by gambling.
- Whether sufficient management measures are proposed or are in place to protect children and other vulnerable persons from being harmed or exploited by gambling.
- Whether any promotional material associated with the premises could encourage the use of the premises by children or young people.
- The Authority will also consider the location of the premises in the context of this licensing objective. If an application for a gambling premises is received for a location within a sensitive area or in close proximity to what are considered to be sensitive areas the Authority will expect applicants to demonstrate that they have sufficient and suitable control measures in place to promote this licensing objective.

#### 8. Premises Licences

- 8.1 Section 150 of the Act permits the issue of premises licences authorising the provision of facilities at the following:
  - casino premises;
  - bingo premises;
  - betting premises, including tracks and premises used by betting intermediaries;
  - adult gaming centres;
  - family entertainment centres.
- 8.2 Premises can be 'any place' but the Act prevents more than one premises licence applying to any one place. A single building could be subject to more than one premises licence provided they are for different parts of the building and those parts can be genuinely regarded as being different 'premises'.
- 8.3 A particular requirement might be for entrances and exits from parts of a building covered by one or more licences to be separate and identifiable so that the separation of the premises is not compromised and that people are not allowed to 'drift' accidentally into a gambling area.
- 8.4 Where the Authority has concerns about the use of premises for gambling it will seek to address these through licence conditions wherever possible.
- 8.5 Other than an application for a betting premises licence in respect of a track,

the Authority is not able to issue a premises licence unless the applicant holds the relevant operating licence from the Gambling Commission.

- 8.6 When considering applications for premises licences the Authority will not take into consideration either the expected 'demand' for facilities or the likelihood of planning permission being granted.
- 8.7 The Authority will maintain a register of premises licences issued and will ensure that the register is open for public inspection at all reasonable times.

#### 9. Location

- 9.1 This Authority is aware that demand issues cannot be considered with regard to the location of premises either on a borough wide or more local scale. However, it considers that the location of gambling premises can be a major factor on the promotion of the licensing objectives. The Authority will pay particular attention to the suitability of a location for gambling activity in terms of the protection of children and vulnerable persons from being harmed or exploited by gambling, as well as issues of crime and disorder.
- 9.2 Operators are required to take into account any sensitive locations within close proximity to proposed gambling premises and provide the Authority with details of how they propose to mitigate and monitor any risks. Applications will not be granted in sensitive locations unless the relevant criteria have been met.
- 9.3 Applicants will have to clearly show that they have considered the potential impact of their proposed business on the licensing objectives and provide information on how they plan to reduce or remove any likely adverse impact on them. The supporting information may contain the following information:
  - how the premises will restrict access to children, young people or other vulnerable persons;
  - whether a proof of age scheme is being used;
  - whether the appropriate number of security staff will be employed at appropriate times;
  - whether opening times will be set so that the premises are not open during school start and finish times;
  - details of procedures and staff training in place to identify vulnerable persons such as problem gamblers, those who are inebriated through drink or drugs, etc.

This list is not mandatory, nor exhaustive, and is merely indicative of example measures.

9.4 The Authority will consider proposals for new gambling premises that are in close proximity to hostels or other accommodation or centres catering for vulnerable people, including those with mental disabilities or learning difficulties, and those with problem gambling or with alcohol or drug abuse problems, as very likely to adversely affect the gambling objectives.

9.5 It should be noted that each application will be decided on its own merits, but the onus will be upon the applicant to show how the potential concerns can be overcome.

#### **10. Primary Gambling Activity**

- 10.1 The primary activity of each premises licence type is specified on the premises licence when it is issued. Section 150 of the Gambling Act 2005 authorises the provision of gambling facilities for the following types of premises licences:
  - (a) casino premises
  - (b) bingo premises

(c) betting premises, including tracks and premises used by betting intermediaries

(d) adult gaming centre premises (for category C and D machines)

(e) family entertainment centre premises (for category C and D machines) (note that, separate to this category, the licensing authority may issue family entertainment centre gaming machine permits, which authorise the use of category D machines only).

- 10.2 Gaming machines can only be made available in combination with the nonremote gambling activity which is permitted by that premises licence. The Gambling Commissions LCCP requires that all licensed gambling operators must provide substantive facilities for the primary non-remote gambling activity that the licence authorises before they can make gaming machines available for use.
- The council will take decisions in accordance with the Commission's Guidance 10.3 and Codes of Practice on the combination of sufficient facilities for the primary gambling activity authorised by the licence and gaming machines made available for use. The council will also have regard to any advice provided by the Gambling Commission which it issues from time to time and will expect applicants to operate premises in line with the Commissions Guidance and conditions on their operator's licence. The council will monitor the operation of premises and report any potential breach of operating licence conditions to the Commission. Applications for new premises licences, or to vary an existing licence, will be expected to be clear that the premises will provide substantive facilities for the primary gambling activity permitted by the premises licence. For example, a betting (other) premises licence application that only has four gaming machines, but no betting counter or associated betting facilities shown on the proposed plans, may not be considered as providing sufficient facilities for the primary gambling activity permitted by that licence and therefore may not be compliant with the Gambling Commissions LCCP or its Guidance to Licensing Authorities.
- 10.4 If an application is found not to be operating a premises in accordance with the Gambling Commissions Codes of Practice or the Guidance issued to Licensing Authorities the council has the power to refuse the application as it would not meet the principles as set out in Section 153 of the Act.

#### 11. Responsible Authorities

11.1 These are generally public bodies that must be notified of all applications and

who are entitled to make representations to the Authority if they are relevant to the licensing objectives.

- 11.2 Section 157 of the Act identifies the bodies that are to be treated as responsible authorities. In relation to the Authority's area, these are:
  - The Authority itself
  - The Gambling Commission;
  - The chief officer of police/chief constable for the area in which the premises is wholly or partially situated
  - The fire and rescue authority for the same area
  - The local planning authority;
  - An authority with functions in relation to pollution of the environment or harm to human health
  - A body designated in writing by the authority as competent to advise about the protection of children from harm (see paragraphs 11.3 and 11.4 below)
  - HM Revenue & Customs; and
  - Any other person prescribed in regulations by the Secretary of State.

Section 211(4) provides that in relation to a vessel, but no other premises, responsible authorities also include navigation authorities within the meaning of section 221(1) of the Water Resources Act 1991 that have statutory functions in relation to the waters where the vessel is usually moored or berthed or any waters where it is proposed to be navigated at a time when it is to be used for licensable activities.

- 11.3 The Authority is required to set out the principles to be applied in exercising its powers to designate, in writing, a body which is competent to advise about the protection of children from harm. The principles applied in designating such a body are:
  - the body must be responsible for covering the whole of the Authority's area: and
  - the body should be answerable to democratically elected persons rather than any particular vested interest groups etc.
- 11.4 The Authority has designated Warwickshire County Council's Multi-Agency Commissioning Team as the local body competent to advise it on the protection of children from harm.

#### 12. Interested Parties

12.1 Interested parties can make representations about licence applications, or apply for a review of an existing licence based on the principles detailed in section 2 of this policy statement.

An interested party is someone who:

(a) lives sufficiently close to the premises to be likely to be affected by the authorised activities;

- (b) has business interests that might be affected by the authorised activities; or
- (c) represents persons in either of the two groups above.
- 12.2 The principles the Authority will apply to determine whether a person is an interested party are:
  - Interested parties could include trade associations and trade unions, and residents' and tenants' associations. This Authority will not however generally view these bodies as interested parties unless they have a member who can be classed as an interested person under the terms of the Gambling Act 2005 e.g. lives sufficiently close to the premises or has business interests likely to be affected by the activities being applied for.
  - Interested parties can be persons who are democratically elected such as Councillors and MPs. No specific evidence of being asked to represent an interested person will be required as long as the Councillor/MP represents the ward likely to be affected. Other than these persons, this Authority will require written evidence that a person 'represents' someone who either lives sufficiently close to the premises to be likely to be affected by the authorised activities and/or business interests that might be affected by the authorised activities. A letter from one of these persons, requesting the representation is sufficient.
  - Each case will be decided upon its merits. This Authority will not apply a rigid rule to its decision making. It will consider the examples of considerations provided in the Gambling Commission's Guidance for local authorities.
- 12.3 If individuals wish to approach Councillors to ask them to represent their views then care should be taken that the Councillors are not part of the Licensing and Safety Committee dealing with the licence application, or in any other way have a personal interest that would preclude them from participating in a hearing. If there are any doubts then please contact the Licensing Team.
- 12.4 It should be noted that, unlike the Licensing Act, the Gambling Act does not include as a specific licensing objective the prevention of public nuisance. There is however other relevant legislation which deals with public nuisance.

#### 13. Representations

- 13.1 The Authority is obliged to consider representations from 'responsible authorities' and 'interested parties' and must determine whether or not representations are admissible. A representation is inadmissible if not made by a responsible Authority or an interested party.
- 13.2 The only representations likely to be relevant are those that relate to the licensing objectives, or that raise issues under this Statement or the Commission's Guidance or Codes of Practice. The Authority must determine the relevance of the representation.
- 13.3 Any concerns that responsible authorities have in relation to their own functions

cannot be taken into account if they are not relevant to the application for a premises licence and the licensing objectives.

- 13.4 The Authority may, in certain circumstances, consider a representation to be either frivolous or vexatious. This will generally be a matter of fact given the circumstances of each individual case but before coming to a decision the Authority may consider the following:
  - who is making the representation and whether there is a history of making representations that are not relevant;
  - whether it raises a 'relevant' issue or not; or
  - whether it raises issues specifically to do with the premises which are the subject of the application.

#### 14. Conditions of Licence

- 14.1 Conditions imposed by the Authority may be general in nature by applying to all licences, or those of a particular type, or they may be specific to a particular licence.
- 14.2 The Authority will not generally impose conditions that limit the use of premises for gambling unless it is deemed to be necessary as a result of the requirement to act in accordance with the Gambling Commission's Guidance, any Codes of Practice issued by the Commission, this Statement of Principles or in a way that is reasonably consistent with the licensing objectives.

14.3 Any conditions imposed by the Authority will be proportionate to the circumstances they are intended to address. In particular, the Authority will ensure that any conditions are:

- relevant to the need to make the premises suitable as a gambling facility;
- directly related to the premises and the type of licence applied for;
- fairly and reasonably related to the scale and type of premises;
- reasonable in all other respects; and
- decided on a case by case basis.
- 14.4 The Authority will not consider imposing conditions:
  - which make it impossible to comply with an operating licence condition imposed by the Gambling Commission;
  - relating to gaming machine categories, numbers or method of operation;
  - which specify that membership of a club or other body is required; and
  - in relation to stakes, fees, winnings or prizes.

#### 15. Casinos

15.1 The Authority has not passed a 'no casino' resolution under Section 166 of the Gambling Act 2005 but is aware that it has power to do so. Should the Authority decide to pass such a resolution, it will update this policy with details of the resolution.

#### 16. Betting Premises

- 16.1 Anyone wishing to operate a betting office will require a betting premises licence from the Authority. Children and young persons will not be able to enter premises with a betting premises licence.
- 16.2 The Authority is aware of its power to restrict the number of betting machines, their nature and the circumstances in which they are made available by attaching a licence condition to a betting premises licence.
- 16.3 In the event that the Authority considers whether to impose such a condition on any particular licence it may, among other things, take into account the size of the premises, the number of counter positions available for person to person transactions, and the ability of staff to monitor the use of the machines.

#### 17. Bingo

- 17.1 Licensing authorities will need to satisfy themselves that bingo can be played in any bingo premises for which they issue a premises licence. This will be a relevant consideration where the operator of an existing premises applies to vary their licence to exclude an area of the existing premises from its ambit and then applies for a new premises licence, or multiple licence, for that or those excluded areas.
- 17.2 Section 172(7) of the Act provides that the holder of bingo premises licences may make available for use a number of category B gaming machines for use on the premises.
- 17.3 This Authority also notes the Commission's Guidance in the unusual circumstances in which the splitting of pre-existing premises into two adjacent premises might be permitted. It is not permissible for all of the gaming machines to which each of the licenses brings an entitlement to be grouped together within one of the licensed premises.
- 17.4 The holder of a bingo operating licence will be able to provide any type of bingo game including cash and prize bingo.
- 17.5 Commercial bingo halls will require a bingo premises licence from the Authority.
- 17.6 Children and young people are allowed into bingo premises, however they are not permitted to participate in the bingo and if category B or C machines are made available for use these must be separated from areas where children and young people are allowed, local authorities will ensure that:
  - all such machines are located in an area of the premises separate from the remainder of the premises by a physical barrier which is effective to prevent access other than through a designated entrance;
  - only adults are admitted to the area where the machines are located;
  - access to the area where the machines are located is supervised;

- the area where the machines are located is arranged so that it can be observed by staff of the operator or the licence holder; and
- at the entrance to, and inside any such area there are prominently displayed notices indicating that access to the area is prohibited to persons under 18.

#### 18. Tracks

- 18.1 Only one premises licence can be issued for any particular premises at any time unless the premises is a 'track'. A track is a site where races or other sporting events take place.
- 18.2 Track operators are not required to hold an Operator's Licence granted by the Gambling Commission. Therefore, premises licences for tracks, issued by the Authority are likely to contain requirements for premises licence holders about their responsibilities in relation to the proper conduct of betting. Indeed, track operators will have an important role to play, for example in ensuring that betting areas are properly administered and supervised.
- 18.3 Although there will, primarily be a betting premises licence for the track there may be a number of subsidiary licences authorising other gambling activities to take place. Unlike betting offices, a betting premises licence in respect of a track does not give an automatic entitlement to use gaming machines.
- 18.4 When considering whether to exercise its power to restrict the number of betting machines at a track the Authority will consider the circumstances of each individual application and, among other things will consider the potential space for the number of machines requested, the ability of track staff to supervise the machines, especially if they are scattered around the site, and the ability of the track operator to prevent children and young persons and vulnerable people betting on the machines.

#### **19. Temporary Use Notices**

- 19.1 Temporary Use Notices allow the use of premises for gambling where there is no premises licence but where a gambling operator wishes to use the premises temporarily for providing facilities for gambling. Premises that might be suitable for a Temporary Use Notice, according to the Gambling Commission, would include hotels, conference centres and sporting venues.
- 19.2 The Authority can only accept a Temporary Use Notice from a person or company holding a relevant operating licence.
- 19.3 Regulations prescribed by the Secretary of State provide that Temporary Use Notices can only be used to permit the provision of facilities for equal chance gaming where the gaming is intended to produce a single winner, for example games such as backgammon, cribbage, bingo and poker.
- 19.4 There are a number of statutory limits as regards temporary use notices. Gambling Commission Guidance is noted that "The meaning of "premises" in part 8 of the Act is discussed in Part 7 of the Gambling Commission Guidance. As with "premises", the definition of "a set of premises" will be a question of fact

in the particular circumstances of each notice that is given. In the Act "premises" is defined as including "any place". In considering whether a place falls within the definition of "a set of premises", licensing authorities will need to look at, amongst other things, the ownership/occupation and control of the premises.

19.5 The Authority expects to object to notices where it appears that their effect would be to permit regular gambling in a place that could be described as one set of premises, as recommended in the Gambling Commission Guidance.

#### 20. Occasional Use Notices

20.1 The Authority has very little discretion as regards these notices aside from ensuring that the statutory limit of 8 days in a calendar year is not exceeded. The Authority will though need to consider the definition of a 'track' and whether the applicant is permitted to avail themselves of the notice.

#### 21. Gaming Machines

- 21.1 A machine is not a gaming machine if the winning of a prize is determined purely by the player's skill. However, any element of 'chance' imparted by the action of the machine would cause it to be a gaming machine.
- 21.2 The Authority is aware of its power to restrict the number of gaming machines in certain circumstances. In the event that the Authority considers whether to impose such a restriction on any particular permit it may, among other things, take into account the size of the premises and the ability of staff to monitor the use of the machines by children and young persons or by vulnerable persons.
- 21.3 The Authority will be unable to issue premises licences to authorise gaming machines in certain types of premises. These generally will be premises to which children and vulnerable people will have unrestricted access and would include take-away premises, taxi offices, supermarkets etc.

#### 22. Unlicensed Family Entertainment Centre Gaming Machine Permits

- 22.1 Where a premises does not hold a Premises Licence but wishes to provide gaming machines, it may apply to the Authority for this permit. It should be noted that the applicant must show that the premises will be wholly or mainly used for making gaming machines available for use.
- 22.2 The Gambling Act 2005 states that the Authority may "prepare a statement of principles that they propose to consider in determining the suitability of an applicant for a permit" and in preparing this statement, and/or considering applications, it need not (but may) have regard to the licensing objectives and shall have regard to any relevant Guidance issued by the Commission under section 25. The Gambling Commission's Guidance also states that in their three year licensing policy statement, licensing authorities may include a statement of principles that they propose to apply when exercising their functions in considering applications for permits and licensing authorities will want to give weight to child protection issues.

- 22.3 Guidance also states that an application for a permit may be granted only if the Authority is satisfied that the premises will be used as an unlicensed FEC, and if the chief officer of police has been consulted on the application, licensing authorities may wish to consider asking applications to demonstrate:
  - A full understanding of the maximum stakes and prizes of the gambling that is permissible in unlicensed FECs;
  - That the applicant has no relevant convictions (those that are set out in the Act); and
  - That staff are trained to have a full understanding of the maximum stakes and prizes.
- 22.4 It should be noted that the Authority cannot attach conditions to this type of permit.
- 22.5 This Authority has adopted a Statement of Principles that is available from the Licensing Section or on the Authority's website (www.rugby.gov.uk). Potential applicants / other interested persons are advised to read the Statement of Principles before applying to the Authority for a licence or permit.
- 22.6 With regard to renewals of these permits, the Authority may refuse an application for renewal of a permit only on the grounds that an authorised local authority officer has been refused access to the premises without reasonable excuse, or that renewal would not be reasonably consistent with pursuit of the licensing objectives.

#### 23. (Alcohol) Licensed Premises Gaming Machine Permits

- 23.1 There is provision in the Act for premises licensed to sell alcohol for consumption on the premises, to automatically have 2 gaming machines, of categories C and/or D. The premises merely need to notify the Authority. The Authority can remove the automatic authorisation in respect of any particular premises if:
  - provision of the machines is not reasonably consistent with the pursuit of the licensing objectives;
  - gaming has taken place on the premises that breaches a condition of section 282 of the Gambling Act (i.e. that written notice has been provided to the Authority, that a fee has been provided and that any relevant code of practice issued by the Gambling Commission about the location and operation of the machine has been complied with);
  - the premises are mainly used for gaming; or
  - an offence under the Gambling Act has been committed on the premises
- 23.2 If a premises wishes to have more than 2 machines, then it needs to apply for a permit and the Authority must consider that application based upon the licensing objectives, any Guidance issued by the Gambling Commission issued under section 25 of the Gambling Act 2005, and "*such matters as they think relevant.*"

This Authority considers that "such matters" will be decided on a case by case basis but generally there will be regard to the need to protect children and vulnerable persons from harm or being exploited by gambling, and will expect the applicant to satisfy the Authority that there will be sufficient measures to ensure that under 18 year olds do not have access to the adult only gaming machines. Measures which will satisfy the Authority that there will be no access may include the adult machines being in sight of the bar, or in the sight of staff who will monitor that the machines are not being used by those under 18. Notices and signage may also be help. As regards the protection of vulnerable persons applicants may wish to consider the provision of information leaflets / helpline numbers for organisations such as GamCare.

- 23.3 It is recognised that some alcohol-licensed premises may apply for a premises licence for the use of gaming machines in their non-alcohol licensed areas. Any such application would need to be applied for, and dealt with as an Adult Gaming Centre premises licence.
- 23.4 It should be noted that the Authority can decide to grant the permit application with a smaller number of machines and/or a different category of machines than that applied for. Conditions (other than these) cannot be attached.
- 23.5 It should also be noted that the holder of a permit must comply with Gaming Machines in Alcohol Licensed Premises Code of Practice issued by the Gambling Commission about the location and operation of the machine(s).

#### 24. Prize Gaming Permits

- 24.1 The Gambling Act 2005 states that the Authority may "prepare a statement of principles that they propose to apply in exercising their functions under this Schedule" which "may, in particular, specify matters that the Authority propose to consider in determining the suitability of the applicant for a permit".
- 24.2 This Authority has adopted a Statement of Principles that is available from the Licensing Section or on the Authority's website (www.rugby.gov.uk). Potential applicants / other interested persons are advised to read the Statement of Principles before applying to the Authority for a licence or permit.
- 24.3 In making its decision on an application for this permit the Authority does not need to but may have regard to the licensing objectives but must have regard to any Gambling Commission Guidance.
- 24.4 It should be noted that there are conditions in the Gambling Act 2005 with which the permit holder must comply, but the Authority cannot attach conditions. The conditions in the Act are:
  - the limits on participation fees, as set out in regulations, must be complied with;
  - all chances to participate in the gaming must be allocated on the premises on which the gaming is taking place and on one day; the game must be played and completed on the day the chances are allocated; and the result of the game must be made public in the premises on the day that it is played;

- the prize for which the game is played must not exceed the amount set out in regulations (if a money prize), or the prescribed value (if nonmonetary prize); and
- participation in the gaming must not entitle the player to take part in any other gambling.

#### 25. Club Gaming and Club Machine Permits

- 25.1 Members' clubs and miners' welfare institutes (but not commercial clubs) may apply for a Club Gaming Permit or a Club Gaming Machine Permit. The Club Gaming Permit will enable the premises to provide gaming machines (3 machines of categories B, C or D), equal chance gaming and games of chance as set-out in regulations. A Club Gaming Machine Permit will enable the premises to provide gaming machines (3 machines of categories B, C or D).
- 25.2 Members' clubs must have at least 25 members and be established and conducted "wholly or mainly" for purposes other than gaming, unless the gaming is permitted by separate regulations. It is anticipated that this will cover bridge and whist clubs, which will replicate the position under the Gaming Act 1968. A members' club must be permanent in nature, not established to make commercial profit, and controlled by its members equally. Examples include working men's clubs, branches of Royal British Legion and clubs with political affiliations.
- 25.3 Licensing authorities may only refuse an application on the grounds that:
  - the applicant does not fulfil the requirements for a members' or commercial club or miners' welfare institute and therefore is not entitled to receive the type of permit for which it has applied;
  - the applicant's premises are used wholly or mainly by children and/or young persons;
  - an offence under the Act or a breach of a permit has been committed by the applicant while providing gaming facilities;
  - a permit held by the applicant has been cancelled in the previous ten years; or
  - an objection has been lodged by the Commission or the police.
- 25.4 It should be noted that there is a 'fast-track' procedure available for premises which hold a Club Premises Certificate under the Licensing Act 2003. The Gambling Commission's Guidance for local authorities states: "Under the fasttrack procedure there is no opportunity for objections to be made by the Commission or the police, and the grounds upon which an Authority can refuse a permit are reduced". The grounds on which an application under the process may be refused are:
  - that the club is established primarily for gaming, other than gaming prescribed under schedule 12;
  - that in addition to the prescribed gaming, the applicant provides facilities for other gaming; or
  - that a Club Gaming Permit or Club Machine Permit issued to the applicant in the last ten years has been cancelled.

25.5 There are statutory conditions on Club Gaming Permits that no child uses a category B or C machine on the premises and that the holder complies with any relevant provision of a code of practice about the location and operation of gaming machines.

#### 26. Lotteries

- 26.1 In carrying out its functions in relation to Lotteries, the Authority will have regard to the Act, any Guidance issued by the Commission from time to time and any Regulations issued by the Secretary of State.
- 26.2 The Act makes it illegal to promote lotteries unless they are licensed or within an exempt category. One such exemption relates to registered small society lotteries and the Authority is responsible for registering small society lotteries, which are promoted by non-commercial organisations that are established for:
  - charitable purposes;
  - for the purpose of enabling participation in, or of supporting, sport, athletics or a cultural activity; or
  - any other non-commercial purpose other than that of private gain.

#### 27. Exchange of Information

27.1 The principle that the Authority will apply in respect of the exchange of information between it and the Gambling Commission and those bodies listed in Schedule 6 of the Act is that it will act in accordance with the provisions of the Gambling Act 2005, which includes the provision that the Data Protection Act 1998 will not be contravened. The Authority will also have regard to any Guidance issued by the Gambling Commission to local authorities on this matter, as well as any relevant regulations issued by the Secretary of State.

#### 28. Enforcement

- 28.1 The Authority will liaise with the Gambling Commission and other enforcing authorities on enforcement issues and will look to carry out joint inspections. The targeting of resources towards high-risk premises and activities that require greater attention will provide a more efficient deployment of the Authority's officers and other officers that are commonly engaged in enforcing gambling law and inspection of licensed premises. A lighter touch will apply in respect of low risk premises, which are well run.
- 28.2 The Authority's approach to enforcement will be based on identified risk and will take into account:
  - relevant Codes of Practice;
  - Guidance issued by the Gambling Commission;
  - the licensing objectives;
  - the principles set out in this statement of gambling policy.
- 28.3 In general, action will only be taken in accordance with the principles of the Regulators' Code, the Authority's Enforcement Policy and the relevant

provisions of the Regulatory Enforcement and Sanctions Act 2008. To this end the key principles of consistency, transparency and proportionality will be maintained.

- 28.4 The Authority will also be guided by the Gambling Commission's Guidance for local authorities and will endeavour to be:
  - **Proportionate**: regulators should only intervene when necessary: remedies should be appropriate to the risk posed, and costs identified and minimised;
  - Accountable: regulators must be able to justify decisions, and be subject to public scrutiny;
  - **Consistent:** rules and standards must be joined up and implemented fairly;
  - **Transparent**: regulators should be open, and keep regulations simple and user friendly; and
  - **Targeted:** regulation should be focused on the problem, and minimise side effects
- 28.5 In accordance with the Gambling Commission Guidance to licensing authorities the Authority will endeavour to avoid duplication with other regulatory regimes as far as possible.
- 28.6 The main enforcement and compliance role for this Authority in terms of the Gambling Act 2005 will be to ensure compliance with the Premises Licences and other permissions, which it authorises. The Gambling Commission will be the enforcement body for the Operator and Personal Licences. It is also worth noting that concerns about manufacture, supply or repair of gaming machines will not be dealt with by the Authority but will be notified to the Gambling Commission.

#### 29. The Licensing Process

29.1 The powers of the Council as the Licensing Authority under the Act may be carried out by the Licensing and Safety Committee, by a Sub-Committee or, instead, by one or more Council officers acting under delegated Authority. The Council has adopted the following scheme of delegation:

Matters to be dealt with	Full Council	Licensi ng and Safety Commit tee	Licensing and Safety Committee or appointed sub- committee	Officers
Three year Gambling Policy	Х			
Policy not to permit casinos	Х			
Fee Setting –		Х		

when		
appropriate		
Application for	Where representations	Where no
premises licence	have been received and not withdrawn	representations
licence	not withdrawn	received/representa tions have been
		withdrawn
Application for	Where representations	Where no
Application for a variation to a	have been received and	
licence	not withdrawn	representations received/representa
licence	not withdrawn	tions have been
		withdrawn
Application for	Where representations	Where no
a transfer of a	have been received and	representations
licence	not withdrawn	received/representa
		tions have been
		withdrawn
Application for	Where representations	Where no
a provisional	have been received and	representations
statement	not withdrawn	received/representa
		tions have been
		withdrawn
Application to	N/	
review	Х	
premises licence/club		
premises		
certificate		
Application for	Where objections have	Where no
club	been made and not	objections
gaming/club	withdrawn.	made/objections
machine		have been
permits		withdrawn
Cancellation of		
club	Х	
gaming/club		
machine		
permits		
Applications for other		Х
permits/registr		^
ation of small		
society		
lotteries		
Cancellation of		
licensed		Х
premises		
gaming		
machine		
permits		
Consideration		

		Appendix A
of temporary		X
use notice		
Decision to		
give a counter	Х	
notice to a		
temporary use		
notice		

- 29.2 Application forms will be in the format prescribed by regulations. The form will need to contain information that describes the gambling activities to be provided, the operational procedures, hours, nature of the location, needs of the local community, etc. Most importantly, the applicant will have to detail the steps that will be taken to promote the three licensing objectives. From 6<sup>th</sup> April 2016 applicants should carry out a risk assessment before they apply for a premises licence or to vary a premises licence.
- 29.3 Applicants are encouraged to fully consult the Police and other responsible authorities well in advance of submitting their applications. Application forms and guidance leaflets will be available from the Authority, including contact names for each of the responsible authorities that will be receiving applications. Most applications will require additional documentation and a fee to be included with the form. Incomplete applications will not be considered and will be returned to the applicant.
- 29.4 As a minimum, the Council will require the local risk assessment to consider:
  - The location of services for children such as schools, playgrounds, leisure/community centres, and other areas where children will likely gather;
  - premises licensed to sell alcohol, ATM cash dispensers;
  - The demographics of the area in relation to vulnerable groups
  - Whether the premises is in an area subject to high levels of crime and/or disorder.

Local risk assessments should show how vulnerable people, including people with gambling dependencies, are protected.

29.5 The Act requires licensing authorities to maintain a register of premises licences issued. The register must be available at any reasonable time to the public, who can request copies of the entries. The register will be located at:

Rugby Borough Council Town Hall Evreux Way Rugby CV21 2RR

#### **30.** Licence Reviews

30.1 Requests for a review of a premises licence can be made by interested

Appendix A parties or responsible authorities. Requests for reviews must be relevant and the Authority will determine each request on its merits as to whether a review should be carried out. The Authority can also initiate a review of a particular premises licence if appropriate.

- 30.2 Once a valid application for a review has been received by the Authority, representations can be made by responsible authorities and interested parties during a 28 day period. This period begins 7 days after the application was received by the Authority. The review will be carried out as soon as possible after the 28 day period for making representations has passed.
- 30.3 The purpose of the review will be to determine whether the Authority should take any action in relation to the licence including adding, removing or amending licence conditions, suspending the premises licence for a period not exceeding three months, or revoking the premises licence. In determining what action, if any, should be taken, the Authority will have regard to the principles set out in section 153 of the Act, as well as any relevant representations.

Please ask forLicensing & Parking TeamDirect Line(01788) 533 533E-mail Addresslicensing@rugby.gov.uk

Date

17 July 2024

Dear Sirs

#### Gambling Act 2005 – Review of Gambling Policy

The Gambling Act 2005 requires the Council, as Licensing Authority, to prepare and publish a statement of its gambling policy at least once every three years. During the three year period, the policy must be kept under review and the Licensing Authority may make revisions as it considers necessary. There have been no material changes from the current policy to the draft policy.

The Council's current policy is due for review by 30 January 2025.

The draft policy document is available on the Council's website on the following link - www.rugby.gov.uk/downloads/download/447/draft\_gambling\_policy\_2022-2025

If you wish to submit comments on the draft policy then please do so in writing to

Licensing & Parking Team Rugby Borough Council Town Hall Evreux Way Rugby CV21 2RR

Alternatively, you can email licensing@rugby.gov.uk.

#### Closing date for comments is 11 October 2024.

Yours sincerely

Othyne.

Emma Payne Licensing Officer

# **EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT (EqIA)**

#### Context

- 1. The Public Sector Equality Duty as set out under section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 requires Rugby Borough Council when making decisions to have due regard to the following:
  - eliminating unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation, and other conduct prohibited by the Act,
  - advancing equality of opportunity between people who share a protected characteristic and those who do not,
  - fostering good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and those who do not, including tackling prejudice and promoting understanding.
- 2. The characteristics protected by the Equality Act are:
  - age
  - disability
  - gender reassignment
  - marriage/civil partnership
  - pregnancy/maternity
  - race
  - religion/belief
  - sex/gender
  - sexual orientation
- 3. In addition to the above-protected characteristics, you should consider the crosscutting elements of the proposed policy, such as impact on social inequalities and impact on carers who look after older people or people with disabilities as part of this assessment.
- 4. The Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA) document is a tool that enables RBC to test and analyse the nature and impact of what it is currently doing or is planning to do in the future. It can be used flexibly for reviewing existing arrangements but in particular should enable identification where further consultation, engagement and data is required.
- 5. The questions will enable you to record your findings.
- 6. Where the EqIA relates to a continuing project, it must be reviewed and updated at each stage of the decision.
- 7. Once completed and signed off the EqIA will be published online.
- 8. An EqIA must accompany all Key Decisions and Cabinet Reports.
- 9. For further information, refer to the EqIA guidance for staff.
- 10. For advice and support, contact: Minakshee Patel Corporate Equality & Diversity Advisor <u>minakshee.patel@rugby.gov.uk</u> Tel: 01788 533509



## **Equality Impact Assessment**

Service Area	Licensing – Regulation and Safety
Policy/Service being assessed	Gambling Policy
Is this is a new or existing policy/service?	Existing Policy, 3 yearly statutory review
If existing policy/service please state date of last assessment	
EqIA Review team – List of members	Emma Payne, Licensing Officer
Date of this assessment	21/06/2024
	Emma Payne
Signature of responsible officer (to be signed after the EqIA has been completed)	Emma Payne, Licensing Officer

A copy of this Equality Impact Assessment report, including relevant data and information to be forwarded to the Corporate Equality & Diversity Advisor.

If you require help, advice and support to complete the forms, please contact Minakshee Patel, Corporate Equality & Diversity Advisor via email: <u>minakshee.patel@rugby.gov.uk</u> or 01788 533509



# Details of Strategy/ Service/ Policy to be analysed

Stage 1 – Scoping and Defining	
(1) Describe the main aims, objectives and purpose of the Strategy/Service/Policy (or decision)?	Preventing gambling from being a source of crime and disorder, being associated with crime or disorder, or being used to support crime; • ensuring that gambling is conducted in a fair and open way; and • protecting children and other vulnerable persons from being harmed or exploited by gambling.
(2) How does it fit with Rugby Borough Council's Corporate priorities and your service area priorities?	Rugby Borough Council, as the Licensing Authority (referred to in this Statement as "the Authority"), makes this Statement of Principles in pursuance of its powers and duties under section 349 of the Gambling Act 2005 (referred to in this Statement as "the Act") and sets out the Authority's approach in dealing with its responsibilities under the Act. Residents live healthy, independent lives, with the most vulnerable protected.
(3) What are the expected outcomes you are hoping to achieve?	Residents live healthy, independent lives, with the most vulnerable protected.
<ul> <li>(4)Does or will the policy or decision affect:</li> <li>Customers</li> <li>Employees</li> <li>Wider community or groups</li> </ul>	All listed
Stage 2 - Information Gathering	As a minimum you must consider what is known about the population likely to be affected which will support your understanding of the impact of the policy, eg service uptake/usage, customer satisfaction surveys, staffing data, performance data, research information (national, regional and local data sources).
(1) What does the information tell you about those groups identified?	Technical Group meeting with neighbouring local authorities. Legislation – Gambling Act 2005

(2) Have you consulted or involved those groups that are likely to be affected by the strategy/ service/policy you want to implement? If yes, what were their views and how have their views influenced your decision?	<ul> <li>12-week consultation period for;</li> <li>Responsible Authorities</li> <li>Holders of existing licences, permits and registrations</li> <li>Councillors and Parish Councils</li> <li>Representatives of businesses</li> <li>Representatives of persons carrying on gambling businesses in Rugby</li> <li>Local bodies representing consumers and tourism</li> <li>Local bodies representing vulnerable persons</li> <li>Departments within the Council with an interest in the licensing of gambling</li> </ul>			
(3) If you have not consulted or engaged with communities that are likely to be affected by the policy or decision, give details about when you intend to carry out consultation or provide reasons for why you feel this is not necessary.	N/A			
Stage 3 – Analysis of impact				
(1)Protected Characteristics From your data and consultations is there any positive, adverse or negative impact identified for any particular group, which could	RACE	DISABILITY yes	GENDER yes	
amount to discrimination?	MARRIAGE/CIVIL PARTNERSHIP	AGE yes	GENDER REASSIGNMENT	
If yes, identify the groups and how they are affected.	RELIGION/BELIEF	PREGNANCY MATERNITY	SEXUAL ORIENTATION	



<ul> <li>(2) Cross cutting themes</li> <li>(a) Are your proposals likely to impact on social inequalities e.g. child poverty, geographically disadvantaged communities? If yes, please explain how?</li> <li>(b) Are your proposals likely to impact on a carer who looks after older people or people with disabilities? If yes, please explain how?</li> </ul>	Yes –one of the licensing objectives in the regulatory regime considers protecting children and other vulnerable persons from being harmed or exploited by gambling. No
(3) If there is an adverse impact, can this be justified?	



(4)What actions are going to be taken to reduce or eliminate negative or adverse impact? (this should form part of your action plan under Stage 4.)

Protecting children and other vulnerable persons from being harmed or exploited by gambling -The Gambling Commission's Guidance states that one of the aims of this objective means preventing children from taking part in gambling (as well as restricting advertising so that gambling products are not aimed at or are, particularly attractive to children). The Authority will apply the following criteria and take into account the following considerations, where relevant, in determining applications and reviews.

Criteria:

Whether there are appropriate measures in place to protect children and other vulnerable persons from being harmed or exploited by gambling. Considerations:

Whether the operator has a specific training programme for staff to ensure that they are able to identify children and vulnerable people and take appropriate action to promote this objective to exclude them from the premises or parts of the premises.

If the premises is an adult only environment, whether the operator has taken effective measures to implement an appropriate proof of age scheme to ensure that no one under the age of 18 is admitted to the premises or restricted areas.

Whether there is provision for self-barring schemes and provision of information leaflets/helpline numbers for organisations such as GamCare.

Whether the layout, lighting and fitting out of the premises have been designed so as to not attract children and other vulnerable persons who might be harmed or exploited by gambling.

Whether sufficient management measures are proposed or are in place to protect children and other vulnerable persons from being harmed or exploited by gambling.

Whether any promotional material associated with the premises could encourage the use of the premises by children or young people.

The Authority will also consider the location of the premises in the context of this licensing objective. If an application for a gambling premises is received for a location within a sensitive area or in close proximity to what are considered to be sensitive areas the Authority will expect applicants to demonstrate that they have sufficient and suitable control measures in place to promote this licensing objective



<ul> <li>(5) How does the strategy/service/policy contribute to the promotion of equality? If not what can be done?</li> <li>(6) How does the strategy/service/policy promote good relations between groups? If not what can be done?</li> </ul>	In carrying out its licensing functions the Authority will have regard to Guidance issued by the Gambling Commission. The overriding principle is that each application and the circumstances prevailing at each premises will be considered on their own individual merits. Other considerations such as moral or ethical objections to gambling are not valid reasons to reject applications for premises licences as they do not relate to the licensing objectives. See above
(7) Are there any obvious barriers to accessing the service? If yes how can they be overcome?	Age, there is a legal age requirement for the safety of children.

Stage 4 – Action Planning, Review & Monitoring					
If No Further Action is required then go to – Review & Monitoring					
(1)Action Planning – Specify any changes or improvements that can be made to the service or policy to mitigate or eradicate negative or adverse impact on specific groups, including resource implications.	EqIA Action Plan				
	Action	Lead Officer	Date for completion	Resource requirements	Comments
(2) Review and Monitoring State how and when you will monitor policy and Action Plan	This policy will be	e reviewed every a	3 years or when r	necessary	RUGBY
			Page 7 of 8		COUNCIL

Please annotate your policy with the following statement:

'An Equality Impact Assessment on this policy was undertaken on 21 June 2024 and will be reviewed in line with statutory requirements in 3 years, ready for adoption in January 2027.



# **Rugby Borough Council**

# **Climate Change and Environmental Impact Assessment**

# **TEMPLATE - SEPTEMBER 2021**

# CONTEXT

In 2019 the UK Parliament set a commitment in law to reach net zero carbon emissions by 2050. Achieving this target will require considerable effort with public bodies, private sector organisations, the third sector and individuals working together to take action. Rugby Borough Council declared a climate emergency in 2019, in doing so committed to:

- To move the Council's operations towards Carbon Neutrality by 2030.
- To establish action to tackle climate change as a key driver of all decision-making.
- To provide community leadership in reducing the impact of Climate Change.
- To take action to mitigate the impact of climate change on a Borough wide basis and beyond, through adaptation.

The Council's Corporate Strategy (2021-24) <u>link</u> sets ambitious outcomes in relation to Climate Change. These ambitions must now be progressed through the decisions which the Council makes.

It is therefore important that Rugby Borough Council gives due regard to climate change when making decisions. In the context of the Council's business, Climate Change includes carbon emissions, biodiversity, habitat loss and environmental destruction. When putting forward recommendations for decision, officers must assess how these recommendations are likely to influence our climate change commitments by completing the following Climate Change and Environmental Impact Assessment.

A copy of this Climate Change and Environmental Impact Assessment, including relevant data and information should be forwarded to the Deputy Executive Director.

If you require help, advice and support to complete the forms, please contact Dan Green, Deputy Executive Director.

## **SECTION 1: OVERVIEW**

Portfolio and Service Area	Licensing – Regulation & Safety
Policy/Service/Change being assessed	Statutory Gambling Policy Review
Is this a new or existing Policy/Service/Change?	Existing Policy
If existing policy/service please state date of last assessment	21/06/2024
Ward Specific Impacts	N/A
Summary of assessment Briefly summarise the policy/service/change and potential impacts.	The Gambling Act 2005 places a duty on the Council to publish a Gambling Policy - Statement of Principles on which licensing decisions will be based. The policy must be reviewed every 3 years. The Council's existing policy is now due for review and must be re-published by 30 January 2025. A draft Policy is attached to this report, it is requested that permissions be given to the Licensing and Safety Sub-Committee to consult on this policy in line with statutory requirements.
Completed By	Emma Payne, Licensing Officer
Authorised By	
Date of Assessment	21/06/2024

## **SECTION 2: IMPACT ASSESSMENT**

Climate Change and Environmental Impacts	No Impact	Positive	Negative	Description of impact	Any actions or mitigation to reduce negative impacts	Action owner	Timescales
Energy usage							
Fleet usage							
Sustainable Transport/Travel (customers and staff)							
Sustainable procurement	$\boxtimes$						
Community leadership							
Biodiversity and habitats	$\boxtimes$						
Adaptation/Mitigation							
Impact on other providers/partners							

## **SECTION 3: REVIEW**

Where a negative impact is identified, the proposal and/or implementation can be adapted or changed; meaning there is a need for regular review. This review may also be needed to reflect additional data and evidence for a fuller assessment (proportionate to the decision in question). Please state the agreed review timescale for the identified impacts of the policy implementation or service change.

Review date	January 2028
Key points to be considered through review	Statutory Review – changes to Gambling Commission guidance/legislation.
Person responsible for review	Licensing Team
Authorised by	